
NORTHWEST CONSOLIDATED ZONING BOARD 
Johnson County Administration Building 

111 South Cherry Street 
Board of County Commissioners Hearing Room, Third Floor 

Olathe, Kansas 

MINUTES 
December 19, 2022 

6:30 p.m. 
I. 

A meeting of the Northwest Consolidated Zoning Board, Johnson County, Kansas, was convened 
at 6:33 p.m. on Monday, December 19, 2022, and was called to order by, Kathleen Willnauer, 

present and participating, to-wit: Jim Neese, Mark 

comments. If you share 

II. 

A. 

The motion carried unanimously. 
B. 
C. 

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Crumbaker. 

Motion carried unanimously. 

IV. BOARD REPORTS 

Chair Willnauer: We will now move on to Board Reports. Are there any reports of Board of County 
Commissioners actions? 

Ms. Kriks: Thank you, Madam Chair. I’d like to report that the project for the Baker Accessory 
Dwelling Unit that this Board heard at the October 17, 2022, meeting was approved by the Board 
of County Commissioners on November 17, 2022, with the full support, as recommended by this 
Board. There was no November meeting, so that is the last project that this Board that went to 
the BOCC. 

CALL TO ORDER 

Chairman, with the following members 
Crumbaker, Mike Fowks, and Carol Krska (via Zoom). Brian Leuenberg and Melissa Morris was 
absent. Also in attendance were Jay Leipzig, Michelle Kriks, Megan Lynch, and Sherry Cross with 
the Planning Department. 

[Statement for hybrid in-person/virtual meeting being read at beginning of recording] 

… is called by the moderator, your microphone will be unmuted. Please state your 
name and address for the record, followed by your 
concerns, comments, or points made by others, please refrain from repeating 
these comments and instead note for the record that you agree with the previous 
individual’s comments. There will be a ten-seconds-remaining warning sound. For 
Board members and presenters, please state your name every time you begin 
talking so that the comments can be transcribed for the record. This is a public 
meeting. We are presenting live and recording the meeting. Thank you. 

AGENDA ITEMS 

Add, Delete, or Revise and Approve the Agenda [none] 
Motion by Mr. Crumbaker to approve the agenda, seconded by Mr. Fowks. 

Disclosure of conflicts of interest [none] 
Disclosure of external contacts/discussions [none] 

Motion by Mr. Fowks, to approve the minutes of the October 17, 2022, meeting, seconded by Mr. 

 

        

   
   

 
     

  
 

 
  
 

    

            
             

         
       

           
    

          

          
           

        
          

        
      

          
        

    

        
            

    
      
       

  

                
 

 
   

     

                 
  

            
             
         

                 
   

       Chair Willnauer: Thank you, Michelle. Are there any Planning Commission actions? 
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follow that Planning Advisory Committee meeting. 

Then, a second subcommittee meeting for the Sunflower Army Ammunition Conceptual Land Use 
Plan update was held December 9th . The next subcommittee meeting is scheduled for January 6, 
2023. I’d also like to note that the December Planning Commission meeting is cancelled. 

Mr. Leipzig: Madam Chair, one thing I did want to say on the Sunflower Conceptual Plan, staff is 
looking at how we can expedite some of that process. We think we’ve got several meetings 
planned. We have one that’s planned for January 6th , and another one I think at the end of January 
– January 27th if my dates are correct. So we’re looking at trying to expedite that schedule a little 
bit so we can bring it back to the Planning Commission probably in February or March. 

Mr. Neese: I’d just like to say, some of us took a tour of the area, and living out there and going 
by it lots of times I really had no idea what was going on. It was an excellent tour. I don’t know if 
you know the magnitude of what’s going on out there, but if you’ve got a minute, I’d suggest you 
go out and go on the north side of that and take a look. They’re working 24/7, and I mean it’s 
really major in the…We took a tour around the entire facility, and I hadn’t been on the west side 
of that facility up by County Line in a long time, and it’s real rural out there. Was it Mike or -? 

Mr. Leipzig: Bill Maasen? 

Mr. Neese: Bill Maasen. Excuse me. I went blank for a minute. He said the people who live out 
here don’t even feel like they’re in Johnson County. They’re more like in rural counties to the west. 
So, it was an excellent tour, and I’m sorry everybody couldn’t have done it, but if you can, do it on 
your own sometime. It’s not that far from where we all live. It’s something to go see. 

Chair Willnauer: Thank you, Jim. And speaking of that, are there any Board reports concerning 
the Sunflower Quarry Inspection memo? 

Mr. Leipzig: Just, Madam Chair, in your packet is the memo dated November 28, 2022, the 
inspection report that was presented before the BOCC as well. There were no comments from 
the BOCC on that, either. 

Chair Willnauer: All right, thank you very much, Jay. 

V. BUSINESS BEFORE THE BOARD 

A. Application No. NW 22-259-PP/FP (LE) – Preliminary and Final Plat – South side 
of 111th Street, east of County Line Road 
Wayne Malnicof, applicant, and Clayton McCalmon, landowner, requesting a 

 

        

        
             

        
        

         
   

           
      

      

           
         
          

         
            

                
         
             

                    
              
               

                    
            

                

    

             
             

                 
            

              
    

              
        

      

          

     

            
     

              
            
             
 

       
             
        

 

Ms. Kriks: Thank you, Madam Chair. The October Planning Commission meeting was cancelled. 
In November, the Planning Commission had a pretty full agenda. First, Planning staff sought input 
from the Planning Commission regarding amendments to the regulations regarding accessory 
dwelling buildings. This was for discussion only. No text changes were proposed. Planning staff 
anticipates bringing proposed text to the Planning Commission at the January 24th Planning 
Commission meeting. 

With regard to the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan update, the next Planning Advisory 
Committee meeting is currently scheduled for January 30th, and public information workshops will 

Preliminary and Final Plat for four residential lots (McCalmon Acres) on 60.4 acres, 
on property zoned RUR, Rural District, in Section 14, Township 13, Range 21 

Chair Willnauer: At this time we will move to business before the Board. That would be Application 
No. NW 22-259-PP/FP, Preliminary and Final Plat, south side of 111th Street, east of County Line 
Road. I do want to list hearing procedures for this evening: 
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Board. After that, the applicant presentation, which will last ten minutes or less. 
The applicant shall provide a brief overview of the proposal and comments in 
response to the staff report. We will then have questions of the applicant from the 
Zoning Board. At this time we will open the public comment section of our hearing. 
Public comments will be held to three minutes or less per individual. Please provide 
your name and address for the record. If you share concerns, comments, or points 
made by others, please refrain from repeating those comments, and instead note 
for the record that you agree with the previous individual’s comments. We will then 
have further questions by the Zoning Board of staff, applicant, or the public, at 
which time we will close the public comment section of our hearing. We will have 
discussion of the application by the Zoning Board members and then 
recommendation by the Zoning Board to the Board of County Commissioners. We 
will also announce the Board of County Commissioners meeting date and location. 
If there are any protest petitions, any protest petition must be filed in the Auspice 
of Records and Tax Administration, which functions as the County Clerk, within 14 
days from the conclusion of the public hearing held by the Zoning Board. RTA 
requires an original and two copies of the petition at the time of filing. Sample 
copies of protest petitions may be obtained from the Johnson County Legal 
Department at 111 South Cherry, Suite 3200, and that is here in Olathe, Kansas. 
Their phone number is 913-715-1900. 

At this time I’ll introduce the applicant, Wayne Malnicof, and Clayton McCalmon, 
landowner, requesting a Preliminary and Final Plat for four residential lots on 60.4 acres 
on property zoned RUR, Rural District, in Section 14, Township 13, Range 21. Michelle of 
the Planning Department will be giving the Planning Office presentation at this time. 

Ms. Kriks: Thank you, Madam Chair, members of the Northwest Consolidated Zoning 
Board. Good evening. This evening I would like to enter into the public record a staff report 
for Case No. NW-22-259-PP/FP (LE), a request for approval for a Preliminary and Final 
Plat for four residential lots on 60.4 acres located along 111th Street east of the county line 
in the Lexington Township. Based on the findings of the staff report entered into the public 
record, Johnson County Planning staff is recommending approval of this application, 
subject to stipulations. 

Here in front of you is a vicinity map showing the location of the subject property along 
111th Street. As you can see, directly west is Douglas County, and it’s just kind of nestled 

The following procedures will be adhered to by the Zoning Board when considering 
applications for rezoning, development plans, plats, conditional use permits or 
accessory dwelling unit permits. I would like for you to note that the Chair of the 
Zoning Board retains the right to modify or deviate from these procedures, if 
warranted. We will first introduce the applicant. Second, the Planning Office 
presentation, which will last ten minutes or less. The staff will provide a brief 
overview and highlights of the written staff report. A copy of the written report is 
available upon request. We will then have questions of the staff from the Zoning 

there between Douglas County and the City of De Soto and the recently annexed 
Sunflower Army Ammunition Plant. 

The zoning of the subject property and surrounding parcels is zoned Rural District, RUR, 
as well as agricultural zoning in Douglas County. The minimum lot size in the Rural District 
is ten acres, per the Regulations. This table, which is also in the staff report, shows how 
the plat proposed would comply with the regulations of the Rural District, such as minimum 
lot size, setbacks, lot-depth-to-lot-width ratio, and this project does comply with all of those 
regulations. Based on topographical mapping, the site generally slopes from 111th Street 
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to the southwest, collecting water runoff into a small tributary at the south end of the 
property and conveys that water to Captain Creek, which ultimately flows to the Kansas 
River. The south end of the property is located within the 100-year flood plain associated 
with this small tributary. As you can see from the aerial here, bisecting the property is a 
line of dense mature trees. There are no current improvements on the subject property. It 
has been used for agricultural purposes in the past, such as grazing or other types of row 
crop use. 

The Comprehensive Arterial Road Network Plan designates 111th Street as a Type 2 Major 
Arterial street. Currently, 111th Street is a 20-foot-wide gravel road that requires a total of 
120 feet of right-of-way. The proposed plat shows a dedication of an additional 40 feet of 
right-of-way to meet the 60-foot half-street requirement. No interior streets are proposed 
with this project. On Type 2 arterial streets, 660 feet of lot frontage is required per 
driveway. None of the four lots individually meet this requirement. However, they do plan 
for driveways to be shared, and by sharing a driveway access, combined lots would 
comply with the 660-foot lot width requirement. You can see here on this graphic that 
shows the locations of those shared access points on the drive. 

The applicant provided a sight distance analysis to the County, which was reviewed and 
accepted by Johnson County Public Works, concluding the proposed location of the 
driveway entrances meet minimum recommended sight distances. Here in front of you are 
just a couple quick pictures of the subject property. The very top is looking to the southeast 
from 111th Street. The bottom picture is a little further to the east from that first picture. 
There’s a little access point off of 111th Street that I took in, and it just looks straight west, 
just kind of to highlight the current nature of the site. You can see that line of trees and 
that general slope to the south and west. 

Here is a copy of the Preliminary Plat with the proposed site layout. Staff reviewed the 
infrastructure requirements for the plat, including water, roads and sanitary sewer and 
determined the plat meets all of the requirements. Lot sizes are proposed to range from 
11.1 acres, to over 20, complying with the minimum lot size requirement in the Rural 
District. Here is just a quick copy of the Final Plat. As you can see, it pretty much looks 
exactly like the Preliminary Plat you saw in the previous slide. 

The County’s Rural Comprehensive Plan shows this site is in the Low Density Rural 
Growth Policy Area of the Sunflower Army Ammunition Plant Conceptual Land Use Plan, 
originally adopted in 1998. If the public infrastructure is available, this area would be 
appropriate for three to four dwellings per acre. However, if no public infrastructure is 
available, such as in this case, then the property would be appropriate from one dwelling 
unit per two acres, to one dwelling unit per ten acres, per the Comprehensive Plan. 

This is the City of De Soto’s Comprehensive Plan. It is shown because the site is in the 
City of De Soto’s growth area. That plan was last dated in May of last year. The proposed 
plat is consistent with the County Growth Policy Area for the City of De Soto with minimum 
lot sizes of ten acres per dwelling unit. 

It is staff’s opinion that the proposed density of four lots on the approximate 60 acres is in 
keeping with the Comprehensive Plan. I would like to note for the record, staff did receive 
one phone call regarding concerns for the project. Those concerns included impact of 
increased traffic, the future of Evening Star Road, and the poor water table in the area. 

Staff is recommending approval of the Preliminary and Final plat of a four-lot residential 
subdivision to be known as McCalmon Acres, located on 111th Street, subject to the 
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stipulations outlined in the staff report. Here is a suggested motion if you choose to use 
that. With that, I’m available for questions. 

Chair Willnauer: Thank you, Michelle. Are there any questions of the Planning Office from 
the Zoning Board members? Hearing none, we’ll move on to the applicant presentation. 

Ms. Kriks: I would like to note that the property owner is available to answer questions, 
and I believe that their engineer is available on Zoom, so if there are questions for either 
one of them, they are available. 

Mr. Crumbaker: [inaudible] …very straightforward to me. 

Chair Willnauer: Would someone like to make a motion for a recommendation? 

Motion by Ms. Krska, seconded by Mr. Crumbaker, to approve a Preliminary and Final 
Plat for four (4) residential lots on 60.4 acres, to be known as McCalmon Acres, for the 
reasons and subject to the stipulations recommended by Staff and listed in the staff report. 

Motion carried unanimously. 

Chair Willnauer: Thank you very much, Michelle. We will then move on to questions of the 
applicant from the Zoning Board. Are there any? 

Mr. Crumbaker: The only question I would have is, are your neighbors okay with this 
project? Are they a part of it? Do they know what you’re doing? Have you talked to the 
neighboring property owners? 

[audio interference] 

Clayton McCalmon, 31473 West 171st Street, Gardner, Kansas, 66030, appeared before 
the Zoning Board and made the following comments: 

Mr. McCalmon: What was the question that you would like answered? 

Mr. Crumbaker: From me? 

Mr. McCalmon: Yeah. 

Mr. Crumbaker: Yeah, well have you talked to your neighbors, and is anybody hollering 
about it? Like they don’t like it? 

Mr. McCalmon: Not that I’m aware of. I think our direct neighbor on one side is a rental, 
and I did talk to the rental company at one point. 

Mr. Crumbaker: Okay, thank you. 

Chair Willnauer: Are there any other questions of the applicant? Hearing none, thank you 
very much. We will open the public comments section of our hearing this evening. Are 
there any public comments? Are there any public comments on Zoom? Are there any 
further questions by the Zoning Board of staff, applicant, or the public? Hearing none, at 
this time we will close the public comment section of our hearing, and we will discuss the 
application among the Zoning Board members. Is there any discussion? 

 

        

          
      

       
            

             
        
   

        
      

          
      

   

 

          
       

        

    

    

          
    

            
         

     

            
        

            
           

          
      

      

       

         
             

      

   

           
            

 

          
           

       
 

Chair Willnauer: We will send our recommendation for approval to the Board of County 
Commissioners, and then they will hear this at their meeting. Jay, when will that be? Or 
Michelle? 

Ms. Kriks: Thank you, Madam Chair. This project will be scheduled for the January 19, 
2023, Board of County Commissioners meeting. That meeting will start at 9:30 a.m. here 
in this room at 111 South Cherry Street, Third Floor, Board Hearing Room, in Olathe, 
Kansas. 
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Chair Willnauer: Thank you, Michelle. 

I. OTHER BUSINESS 

Chair Willnauer: Is there any other business before the Board? 

Mr. Leipzig: I wanted to note a couple of things in the packet. In that was a letter dated Preliminary 
Procedures for Meetings. It’s not a letter. It’s a memorandum from our Legal Department, and 
also a summary sheet for Roberts Rules of Order, just as kind of a follow-up to the training that 
we had back in October. It’s probably primarily for the Chair, but I just thought it would be some 
useful information for you in conducting meetings. So I’ll kind of point that out for the record, that 
that was in the packet. And then the other item is, as we wind down the year and we go into 

to conduct the election of officers. I don’t know if we have any cases 
scheduled for the January meeting, but if we don’t do it in January, we should have an election of 
officers in February, so we’ll have to elect a chair and a vice chair. Those are forthcoming. 

graphics. 

Mr. Leipzig: Okay. 

Mr. Crumbaker: They were in mine. 

Ms. Krska: Thank you. 

Mr. Leipzig: That’s all I have, Madam Chair. 

Chair Willnauer: Thank you, Jay. I would entertain a motion for adjournment. 

VII. BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR [none] 

January, we’ll need 

Mr. Neese: Jay, I have a question. In the procedures that the Chair reads beforehand, where she 
introduces the…If we had five people here, wouldn’t it be a little awkward to introduce all five? 
Aren’t they introduced when staff takes on the charge of explaining what each one of the deals 
are, in order? 

Mr. Leipzig: Yes. 

Mr. Neese: Wouldn’t it get a little bit awkward if there were five or six people? That’s just… 

Mr. Leipzig: Yeah, Commissioner Neese, that can be varied, too, but generally yeah, as each 
case comes forward, that applicant would be introduced. But frankly, you could do it either way, 
as long as the applicant is introduced. There’s the timing of it. 

Ms. Krska: Jay, did you say those things should have been in our packet? Because my packet 
only included the agenda and the application and the minutes. And then the drawings, the 

Mr. Leipzig: They should have been in your packet. At least they were in my packet, unless I’m… 

Ms. Krska: They weren’t in mine. Just so you know. 

Mr. Leipzig: Okay. We’ll make sure that everyone receives a copy of that as well. 

 

        

    

     

        

                 
           

                  
              

           
                   

                 
           

          

                
      

              
  

    

             

            
             

         

            
          

  

               

         

    

     

             

    

         

          

        

    

     

    

    

   

VIII. OLD BUSINESS [none] 

IX. NEW BUSINESS [none] 

X. ADJOURNMENT 

Motion by Mr. Neese, seconded by Mr. Crumbaker. 

Motion carries unanimously. 
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Thereupon, with no further business to come before the Northeast Consolidated Zoning Board, 
Chair Willnauer, at 6:59 p.m., declared the meeting to be Adjourned. 
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